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Question:  
 
Senator KITCHING: I am happy for you to take these on notice as well. In relation to small 
business, can you outline what the government's procurement policies are for small business? 
I assume they are on a website.  
Senator Cormann: We will see what we can do.  
Senator KITCHING: Is there any support given to small businesses to apply for government 
contracts?  
Senator Cormann: Those are probably things that go beyond Finance, but we will take it on 
notice.  
Senator KITCHING: Why has the proportion of government contracts being awarded to 
SMEs fallen?  
Senator Cormann: I am not sure that I accept that proposition.  
Mr Sheridan: The percentage changes from year to year, and it is affected greatly by the small 
numbers of very expensive contracts that might be above those margins. If in a particular year 
we get an $8 billion contract or at $10 billion contract, that can significantly change the 
percentage just that year.  
Senator Cormann: So the outcome can be distorted from year to year because of one-off 
events.  
Senator KITCHING: In 2011-2012, for example, it was 39 per cent, but in 2015-2016 it was 
24 per cent. But it may just depend on what is being procured in a particular financial year.  
Senator Cormann: That is right.  
Senator KITCHING: If you can, would you be able to have a look at that and see whether 
there were any factors that skewed those percentages?  
Ms Huxtable: We will do what we can.  
Senator KITCHING: Would you be able to provide on notice for the period 2007-2008 
through to 2015-2016 the numbers and percentages of contracts awarded to SMEs and the 
numbers and percentage of contracts awarded to small enterprises?  
Senator Cormann: We can do that. 
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Answer: 
 
The Department of Finance has a number of initiatives designed to simplify the 
Government/supplier relationship by minimising the burden for businesses contracting with 
the Commonwealth, particularly small business.  
 
The Selling to Government website provides information and support to small business to 
identify opportunities and understand the process to participate in the Commonwealth 
procurement market. The Selling to Government website can be found at:  
http://sellingtogov.finance.gov.au/.   
 
The Commonwealth Contracting Suite (CCS) provides standardised contract and tender 
documents that can be used for contracts valued up to $1 million. The CCS is mandated for 
use in non ICT procurements valued up to $200,000, where a formal contract is required. 
Further information is provided at: www.finance.gov.au/procurement/commonwealth-
contracting-suite/policy/.  
 
The Commonwealth has a number of payment policies aimed at facilitating timely payment 
to suppliers, assisting with cash flow and reducing the cost to business in supplying to the 
Commonwealth. Resource Management Guide No. 416: Facilitating supplier payment 
through payment card, notes that payment cards are the preferred payment mechanism for 
eligible payments to suppliers valued below $10,000 (refer: www.finance.gov.au/resource-
management/spending/credit-card-policy/.  
 
In addition, Resource Management Guide No. 417: Supplier pay on time or pay interest 
policy mandates the payment time of 30 days for contracts valued up to $1 million (refer: 
www.finance.gov.au/resource-management/spending/pay-on-time-policy/). The policy is 
flexible and allows departments and agencies to implement shorter maximum payment terms 
with suppliers. 
 
AusTender, the Australian Government’s central procurement information system has 
transitioned to a new layout in responsive design. The site’s updated style and automatic 
scaling better aligns with, and supports, the broad range of mobile and tablet devices now 
used to access AusTender, in particular by small businesses. 
 
The Commonwealth Procurement Rules also include a commitment that the Government 
source at least 10% of procurement by value from Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs). 
This commitment has been consistently exceeded. 
 
The numbers and percentages of contracts awarded to SMEs for the period 2007-08 through to 
2015-16 is provided in Attachment A. In 2013-14, Finance commenced small business data 
analysis. The numbers and percentages of contracts awarded to small business from 2013-14 
onwards is also provided in Attachment A. 
 
SME participation rates by the number of contracts remain relatively constant. However, a 
small number of high value, longer-term contracts can cause volatility in the participation 
rates by value in the financial year they were published. A table detailing the large value 
contracts that impacted SME participation rates is provided in Attachment A. 
 
 
 
 

 






